Pavan & Associates
Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To

The Members,

Rlabs Enterprise Services Limited
Report on the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Rlabs Enterprise Services Limited (" The
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022 and Statement of Profit and Loss,
Cash flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as ("Financial
Statements”),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information as required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) in the manner
S0 required and give true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2022 and its profit or loss statement for the
year ended on that date,

Basis for opinion

are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's code of ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion on Financial Statements,

Management's responsibility for the financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting recerds in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.,

In preparing the financial statements, management is respaonsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
cancern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process,

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit

may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control,

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 20 13, we
are also responsible for EXpressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or

If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence cbtained up to the date of
our auditor's report, However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern. .

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of account,

d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

e) On the basis of the written répresentations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2021 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2021 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.




f)

)

h)

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions
of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

b) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable |osses,

c) Thereis no such requirement to transferring amounts to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
by the Company {or, following are the instances of delay in transferring amounts, required to be
transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company or there were no
amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Company}.

d) i. The management has represented that, to the best of jt's knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or
in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

ii. The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any Quarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Uitimate Beneficiaries; and

iii, Based on such audit procedures that the auditor has considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has caused them to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

e) The company has not declared any dividend during the year




2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give
in the Annexure "B”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

For Pavan& Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg. No0.0121325S)

Sov a6

S V Pavan Kumar
Partner

Membership No.211281
UDIN: 22211281A0IZME9255

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 04 August, 2022
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(Referred to in Paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of
even date for the year ended 31st March 2022)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Rlabs Enterprise Services
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and Maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to €xpress an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
i controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects,

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide Féasonable assurance that transactions are recorded

authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements




Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2022 based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,

For Pavan & Associates
Chartered Accountants

; /7
(Firm Reg. No.012132S) ;'?";57' N
':'} i |'j;'|_._-:..-l.|-__-:-: 'I{"‘

S V Pavan Kumar Toraaed
Partner i

M No. 211281
UDIN; 22211281A01ZME9255

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 04-08-2022



iii,

(i)

"ANNEXURE B” TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on
the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022, we report that:

(a) (A) The Company has maintained records showing particulars, including Quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets. However, the value and Situation relating to assets of small
individual value, like furniture etc., are grouped and quantitative information and situation is not
identifiable as per the register maintained.;

(a) (B) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets;.

(b) As submitted to us, the Company has physically verified assets, in accordance with a phased
program of verification. However, discrepancies in the guantity or condition of the assets are not
recorded.

(c) The company does not have any immovable properties; hence the provisions of this clause
are not applicable,

(d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets during
the year.

(e) There are no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding
any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and
rules made thereunder, if so, whether the company has appropriately disclosed the details in its
financial statements;

(a) The company does not have any inventory; hence the provisions of this clause are not
applicable,

(b) As at end of the year, the company does not have any working capital limits from banks or
financial institutions. The company has not provided the information relating to the documents
submitted or the quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with such banks or

(A) Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures or Associates

Name ] Aggregate Amount ’ Balance Outstélnding as |
| During the Year | 31-03-2022

Nil

—_—

(B) To Other than Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures or Associates

[ Name ! Aggregate Amount ' Balance Outstanding asj

During the Year in Rs, 31-03-2022 in Rs. _‘
Dataformix 152 Lakhs 10 Lakhs
Technologies Private }
Limited

(b) the company has granted the said loan without Charging interest on such loan and as the
company has paid interest on its borrowed funds, the finance cost of the company will be
lower had no Ioans been granted to the parties in the register maintained under section
189. No repayment for principal is stipulated against the said loan. According to the

loans are granted to meet the working capital requirements of the said party, the funds are
returned according to the cash flows availability of the other party.




(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

The company has complied with the provisions of section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013. The
company has considered the latest available audited balance sheet (i.e. 2020-21) as on the date
of the board approving the grant of loans for ensuring the compliances under section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and has complied with the limits prescribed under section 186.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amount which is deemed to be deposits from
the public.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section
148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company

(@) According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues, the
Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues of Provident Fund,
ESI with the appropriate authorities. However, company has in many instances delayed deposit
of GST and TDS payable by the company., According to the information and explanations given
to us, this has been done because of the working capital gap and the company is working on
improving the same. However, there are ng undisputed amounts payable in respect of such
statutory dues which were outstanding as at 31st March, 2022 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

The company has not recorded any transactions in the books of account have been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
(43 of 1961), if so, the previously unrecorded income has been properly recorded in the books
of account during the year;

(a) The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment
of interest thereon to any lender, hence the provisions of this clause are not applicable

(b) The company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other
lender;

(c) The term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained,

(d) The funds raised on short term basis have been utilised for short term purposes only hence
the provisions of this clause are not applicable;

(e) The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures, hence the provisions of this
clause are not applicable;

(c) The company has not raised loans during the Year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies, hence the provisions of this clause are
not applicable;

(a) The company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) hence the provisions of this clause are not applicable;

(b) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year hence the
provisions of this clause are not applicable;

(a) According to the information and explanations given to Us, no material fraud by the Company

or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course
of our audit,

2014 with the Central Government, hence this clause is not applicable.
The company is not a Nidhi Company: hence the provisions of this clause are not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the company all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with




(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed
in the financial statements, etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards:

The company is not required to appoint an internal auditor under the provisions of section 138
of the Act. :

According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.

(b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities,
hence this clause is not applicable,

(c) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made
by the Reserve Bank of India, hence this clause s not applicable.

The company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year, hence the clause is not applicable;

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditor during the year, hence this clause is
not applicable to the company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the company and financial ratios, ageing and €xpected dates of realisation of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statements, the auditor’s knowledge of the Board of Directors and management
plans, whether the auditor is of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall dye within a period of one year from the balance sheet

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company there is No unspent amount with regard to the
other than ongaing projects,

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company there is no unspent amount with regard to the
ongoing projects

There are no any qualifications or adverse remarks given by the respective auditors in the
Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order (CARO) reports, hence this clause is not applicable to the
company,

For Pavan & Associates

Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg. No.012132S)

Svlpaae

S V Pavan Kumar
Partner

M No. 211281
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UDIN: 22211281A0IZME9255

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 4™ August, 2022



Rlabs Enterprise Services Limited (CIN UT2Z200TGZ013PLCO086168)
Restated Statement of Assets and Liabilities
(Amount in Ks Millions, unless otherwise staied)

Ag at
g Particulars Note No. 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 01-Apr-20
ASSETS
I Non-current assets
{a) Property, Plant and Equipment A 4.99 ELpH 42,27
{b) Right of use assets 26 11.94 21.62 330
(c) Goodwill ac 17.21 17.21 -
(d) Onher intangible Assels iB 17.66 2018 0.01
(d) Investments 4.1 = - 0.59
(&) Other financial assets 4.2 386 3.59 A4
(f) Deferred tex assets 26B 0.49 6.50 7.37
(g) Non-current tax assets n7 76.76 119.55
(h) Other non-current assels 5 - - 20.28
Total Non - Current Assets 93.89 182.06 224.71
2 Current assets
(a) Financial Assels &
(i) Trede receivables 6.] 112.78 11538 144.41
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 6.2 102.27 5541 5017
{iii) Loans 6.3 11§ 61,38 27.88
{iv} Other financial assets 64 112.19 91.17 84.08
{b) Other asse1s 7 2,84 14.55 4.51
Total Current Assets 331.23 337.89 320.25
Total Assets (1+2) 425.12 519.95 544.96
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 8 83.53 83.53 83.53
(b} Other Equity o 185.88 100,90 67.12
Total equity 269.41 184.43 150.65
LIABILITIES
2 MNon-corrent liabllitles
(a) Long term borrowings 190.! - 31.25 20.54
(b) Lease liabilities 26 4,52 14.66 2514
(c) Provisions 10.2 8.74 9.46 7.81
Total Non - Current Liabilities 13.26 55.37 53.49
3} Current liabilities
(a} Financial Liabilities 1
(i) Short 1em borrowings 11.1 - 113.%0 120.25
(ii) Trade payables
{A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 11.2&21 - - -
(B} total outstanding dues of crediters other than micro enterprises and small 1.2 11,60 39,55 133.21
enterprises,
(#ii) Other financial liabilities 11.3 71.36 64,15 -
(b} Lease liabitities 2 10.14 1047 9,13
(¢} Provisions 12 351 342 1.02
(d} Other current habilities 13 45.84 49.06 71.21
Total Current Liabilitles 142,45 280.15 340.82
Total Equity and Liabilities (1+2+3) 425.12 - 519.95 544.%

See accompanying notes to the financlal statements

As per our report of even dale
For Pavan & Assoclates For and on behall o the Board of Directors
Charlered Accountants

Firnm's Registration No. 0121328

\
5V Pavan Kumar Venkatesan Vinodh \
Parmer Director
Membership MNo. 211281 DIN:-06619745
Date: August (4, 2022 Date: August 04, 2022

Place: Hyderabad Place: Banglore Place: Banglore
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. Rilabs Enterprise Services Limited (CIN U72200TG2013PLC086168)
Restated Statement of profit and loss
(Amount in Rs Miltions, unless otherwise stated)

F  ‘culars Note No.
| Revenue from operations 14
[[  Other [ncome 15
T Total Income (1 + 11)
1¥ EXPENSES
fa) Employee benefit expense 16
f&)  Finance cosls 18
fc)  Depreciation and amortisation expense 3826
fd)  Other expenses 19
Total Expenses (V)
¥ Profit before tax (111 - IV)
¥I Tax Expense
ff)  Current tax
{2} Deferred tax
Total tax expense
VII Profit{Loss) for the year (¥ + V1)
YIIE Other comprehensive income/(loss)
A (i) [Items tha will not be recyeled to profit or loss
(a) Remeasurernents of the defined benefit liabilities / (asset)
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified 1o profit or lass
B () [Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss
1X Total comprehensive income/{Loss) for the year (VIT + VIII)
X Earniogs/{loss) per equity share: 25
ff)  Basic
f2) Diluted
See accompanying notes to the financial statements
As per our report of even date
For Pavan & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directo

Chartered Accountants
Firmy's Registration No. 0121325

Qo PR P

8 V Pavan Kumar
Partner

Membership Ne. 211281
Date; August 04, 2022
Place: Hyderabad

N

\ Venkatesan Vinodh

Director
DIN:-06619745

Date: Augnst 04, 2022
Place: Banglore

Year ended  Year ended
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21

1,158.53 1.017.74
520 8.77
1,163.73 1,026.51
836.57 658.20
19.04 26.66
16,66 1831
176.86 273.05
1,049.13 976.22
114.60 50.29
29.96 20.79
44] (0.43)
3437 20.36
80.23 29.93
473 185
6.35 5.15
(1.60) (1.30)
84,98 33.78
9.61 158
9.61 3.58

Director
DIN:-02955892 -
Date: Augiist-04;2022
Place: Banglore'



Rlabs Enterprise Services Limited (CIN U72200TG2013PLC086168)
Restated Statement of cashflows
{Amount in Rs Milliens, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
A, CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Finance costs
Interest income
Provision/{reversal of deubtful debts and Bad debts written off
Loss/(gain) on sale of property plant and equipment
Linbilities no longer required written back
Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes
hanges in workin ital:
Adjustmens for (increase} / decrease in operating assets:
Financial Assets
Trade receivabies
Loans
Other financial assets
Non-financial assets
Other assets

Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in aperating Habilities:
Financial liabilities

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities

Non-financial linbilities
Provisions
Cther liabilities

Net income tax {paid) / refunded
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditure on property plant and equipment, including capital advances

Proceeds from sale of Property plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of investments

Interest received

Business acquisition

Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities (B)

Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
1 14.60 50.29
16.66 18.31
19.04 26.66
(3.28) (0.43)
(6.39) (1.76)
(1.33) 1.27
{0.59) (3.18)
138.71 41,16
2.99 30.79
60.23 (33.50)
7.78 {5.44)
11.71 10.24
(27.36) (90.48)
10.71 60.65
6.12 8.80
(3.22) {28.15)
213.67 44.07
12.07 22.00
225,74 66,07
{5.86) {6.34)
5.14- 3.13
- 0.59
- 043
(3.50) (36.40)
(4.22) (38.59



Rlabs Enterprise Services Limited (CIN U72200TG2013PLC086163)
Siatement of cashNows (Contd...)
{(Amount in Rs Millions, unless otherwise stated)}

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Progeeds from long term barrowings - 11.90
Repayment of Jong term borrowings (28.96) {6.98)
Repaymenl of principal portion operating lease liabilities (13.47) &.14)
1 paid on operating lease liabilities (148) (2.20)
Ingrease/{decrease) in short term borrowings (116,19} (0.56)
Finance costs paid {17.56) (24.46)
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing actlvities (C) (174.66) (31.44)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equlvalents (A+B+C) 46.86 (3.96)
Add; Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 55.41 59.37
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year * 102.27 55,41
Reconcilintion of Cash and Cash Equivalents with the
Cash and cash equivalenis as per Balance Sheet (Refer Note 6.2) 102.27 55.41
Less: Bank balances not considered as cash and cash - -
Cash and cash equivalents as per Cash Flow Statement 10227 55.41
* Comprises:
Balances with banks:
(i) In current accounts 102,27 55.41
Tolal 102,27 55.41

Corporate Information and Significant Accounting Policies - Notes 1 & 2

As per our report of even date
For Pavan & Associates For and on behalf of tik
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration Mo, 0121328

g\\’l’avan umar Venkatesan Vinodh Sudhakan Bala I@
Pariner Director Director

Membership Ne. 211281 DIN:-D6619745 DIN:-02 5§ 92
Date: August 04, 2022 Date: August 04, 2022 Date: August 94. 2022
Place: Hyderabad Place: Banglore Place: Banglore
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Restated Statement of changes in equity
(Amount in Rs Millions, unless otherwise stated)

(a) Equity share capital Amount
Asat 1 Apr 20 83.53
[ssue of shares =
31-Mar-21 81.53
As at L-Apr-21 83.53
[ssue of shares
As at 31-Mar-22 83.53
(b) Other equity Reserves and Surplus

Particulars Retained earnings / (defecit) Total other equity
Asatl Apr20 67.12 67.12
Profitf{loss) for the year 2091 2003
Remeasuremenis of the defined benefit liabilities / (asset) net of tax 385 185
As at 31-Mar-21 100.90 100.90
Profit/{loss) for the year BOL23 80,23
Remeasurements of the defined benefit liabilities / (asset) net of tax 4.75 4.75
As at 31-Mar-22 185.58 185.88
As per our report of even date

For Pavan & Assoclates For and on behalf of the
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 0121328

yard of Directo

5V Pavan Kumar Venkatesan Vinodh

Partner Director

Membership No. 211281 DIN:-06619745

Dale: August 04, 2022 Date: Augusi 04, 2022 Date: Augﬁ{l 04, 2022

Place: Hyderabad Place: Banglore Place: Banglore
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Notes to the restated financial statements

1.Corporate Information

Rlabs Enterprise Services Limited (the “Company” or “Rlabss™) was incorporated as a public
limited company on March 06, 2013. Thé Company is engaged in business of providing
management advisory services and staffing services. The registered office of the Company is
located at H. No. 6-3-883/6/B, 2nd Floor Singhania Towers, Green Lands Panjagutta Hyderabad,
Telangana, 500082

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 were approved by the Board of Directors
and authorised for issue on August 04, 2022.

2. Basis of preparation, measurement and significant accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation and measurement
a. Statement of preparation and compliance

The financial statements ("financial statements”) comply in all material aspects with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act)
[Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] as amended, and other relevant provisions
of the Act.

The financial statements up to year ended March 31, 2019 were prepared in accordance with the
accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 (as amended)
and other relevant provisions of the Act.

These financial statements are the first financial statements of the company under Ind AS. Refer note
33 for an explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the
company’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Company, liabilities incurred by the
Company to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Company in
exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition related costs are generally recognised in Statement
of Profit or Loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at
their fair value, except that deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to employee
benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 ‘Income Taxes’
(“Ind AS 12”) and Ind AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ (“Ind AS 19”) respectively.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
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interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed.

In case of a bargain purchase, before recognizing a gain in respect thereof, the Company determines
where there exists clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination
as a bargain purchase. Thereafter, the Company reassesses whether it has correctly identified all of
the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and recognizes any additional assets or liabilities
that are identified in that reassessment. The Company then reviews the procedures used to measure
the amounts that Ind AS requires for the purposes of calculating the bargain purchase. If the gain
remains after this reassessment and review, the Company recognizes it in other comprehensive
income and accumulates the same in equity as capital reserve. If there does not exist clear evidence
of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase, the
Company recognizes the gain, afier reassessing and reviewing (as described above), directly in equity
as capital reserve.

Transaction costs that the Company incurs in connection with a business combination such as,
finder’s fees, legal fees, due diligence fees, and other professional and consulting fees are expensed
as incurred.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Company’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is remeasured to its acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is
recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the
acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified
to statement of profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed-
off.

¢. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:
i.  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.
ii.  Held primarily for the purpose of trading.
iii.  Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
iv.  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

i. Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle.
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ii.  Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

i, Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv.  There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. Advance tax paid
is classified as non-current assets.

d. Operating cycle

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule 111 to the Companies Act 2013. Based on the
nature of services and the time taken between acquisition of assets for processing and their realization
in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for
the purpose of the classification of assets and liabilities into current and non-current.

e. Basis of measurement
Basis of accounting

The Company maintains its accounts on accrual basis following historical cost convention, except for
certain assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in accordance with Ind AS. Fair value
measurements are categorised as below based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its
entirety:

i. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Company can access at measurement date;

ii. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included in level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
ili. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the valuation of assets or liabilities.

Above levels of fair value hierarchy are applied consistently and generally, there are no transfers
between the levels of the fair value hierarchy unless the circumstances change warranting such
transfer.

f. Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised prospectively in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which the
estimaies are revised and in any future periods affected.

i. The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:.

ii. Determination of useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangibles;
iii.  Impairment test of non-financial assets

iv. Recognition of deferred tax assets;

V. Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies;

Vi, Fair value of financial instruments

vii.  Impairment of financial assets
viii. Measurement of defined benefit obligations;

2.2 Significant accounting policies
a. Property plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement:

Items of property, plant and equipment, other than freehold land are measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes (after deducting trade discounts and rebates), any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the item and restoring the site on which it is
located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in profit or
loss when the item is derecognised.

Subsequent expenditure:

Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Company and that the cost of the item can be reliably measured.

The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repair and maintenance are charged to the Statement of profit and loss during the
reporting year in which they are incurred.
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Depreciation:

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, is provided under the straight-line method in the
manner prescribed under Schedule 11 of the Act, except in the following case where the life is different
than as indicated in Schedule II of the Act which is based on the technical evaluation of useful life
carried out by the management:

Particulars Economic Useful Life of

property, plant and
equipment (Years)

Furniture & Fixture 3-5 years
Vehicles 6 years
Office equipment’s 5 years
Computers 3 years
Building 60 ycars

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

b. Intangible assets
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business less accumulated impairment losses, if any. For the purposes of
impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or
more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the
unit pro-rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised directly in Statement of profit and loss.

Other Intangible assets:

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding eligible development
costs are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in the Statement of profit and Loss in
the period in which the expenditure is incuired.
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Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets using the strai ght-line method over
their estimated useful lives, and is recognised in profit or loss.

The estimated useful lives as mentioned below:

Description of the asset Estimated Useful Life (Years)
Computer Software 3
Customer contracts 5

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year
and adjusted if appropriate.

¢. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting
date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an individual asset (or where applicable, that of cash generating unit
(CGU) to which the asset belongs) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell.
Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or CGU).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets for
which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Company reviews at each reporting
date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount,
Such a reversal is made amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation,
if no impairment loss had been recognised.

d. Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All financial assets other than those measured subsequently at fair value
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through profit and loss, are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

e Amortised cost,
e Fair value through profit (FVTPL)
e Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

on the basis of its business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset.

Amortised cost:
A financial instrument is measured at the Amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

- The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

- Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

Fair value through profit and loss ( 'FVTPL'):

All financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income are measured at fair value through profit or loss with all changes recognised
in the Statement of profit and loss. Interest (basis EIR method) income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss within finance income/
finance costs separately from the other gains/ losses arising from changes in the fair value.

Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (‘FVOCI)

Financial assets are measured at FVOCI if both the following conditions are met:
The asset is held within'a business model whose objective is achieved by both

- collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and
- contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI on the
principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, these assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends, Interest
income under effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment losses are
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recognised in the Statement of profit and loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or a part of a Group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.., removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired, or

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through’ arrangement; and either

(a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

On de-recognition, any gains or losses on all debt instruments (other than debt instruments measured
at FVOCI) and equity instruments (measured at FVTPL) are recognised in the Statement of profit and
loss. Gains and losses in respect of debt instruments measured at FVOCI and that are accumulated in
OCI are reclassified to profit or loss on de-recognition.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets measured at Amortised cost
and debt instruments measured at FVOCL

Loss allowances on trade receivables are measured following the *simplified approach’ at an amount
equal to the lifetime ECL at each reporting date. In respect of other financial assets, the loss allowance
is measured at 12-month ECL only if there is no significant deterioration in the credit risk since initial
recognition of the asset or asset is determined to have a low credit risk at the reporting date.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit
and loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Subsequent measurement



Rlabs Enterprise Services Limited (CIN U72200TG2013PLC0861638)

Notes to the restated financial statements

Subsequent measurement is determined with reference to the classification of the respective financial
liabilities.

Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL):

A financial liability is classified as Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) if it is classified as
held-for trading or is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are
measured at fair value and changes therein, including any interest expense, are recognised in
Statement of profit and loss.

Financial Liabilities at Amortised cost:

After initial recognition, financial liabilities other than those which are classified as FVTPL are
subsequently measured at Amortised cost using the effective interest rate (“EIR™) method.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The Amortisation done using the EIR method is included as finance
costs in the Statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of
profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

e. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet and cash flow statement includes cash at bank, cash,
cheque, draft on hand and demand deposits with an original maturity of less than three months, which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

f. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognised when the enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
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will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. These
are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management estimates.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as
finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events but
their existence is confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Company.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the entity. Contingent assets are not recognised till the realization of the
income is virtually certain. However, the same are disclosed in the Financial statements where an
inflow of economic benefit is probable.

g. Revenue recognition

The Company derives revenue primarily from staffing services, tech staffing services & recruitment
and other services.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Company recognises revenue when it fransfers
control over service to a customer. The method for recognising revenues and costs depends on the
nature of the services rendered.

Revenue on time-and-material contracts are recognised as the related services are rendered and
revenue from the end of the last invoicing to the reporting date is recognised as unbilled revenue.

Revenue from fixed-price, fixed time frame contracts, where the performance obligations are satisfied
overtime and where there is no uncertainty as to measurement or collectability of consideration, is
recognised as per the percentage-of-completion method. When there is uncertainty as to measurement
or ultimate collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved. Efforts
or costs expended have been used to measure progress towards completion as there is a direct
relationship between input and productivity.

Revenues in excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets (referred to as unbilled revenue)
while invoicing in excess of revenues are classified as contract liabilities (referred to as income
received in advance).

a) Staffing Services:
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Revenue from staffing services i.e., salary and incidental expenses of temporary associates along with
services charges are fecognised in accordance with the agreed terms as the related services are
rendered.

b) Tech staffing services

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised services to customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those services.

¢) Recruitment and other services

Revenue from permanent recruitment services is recognised in accordance with the agreed terms as
the related services are rendered.

h. Other income
Interest income

For all debt instruments measured at Amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective
interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate which exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. When
calculating the EIR the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual
terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayments, extensions, call and similar options);
expected credit losses are considered if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition.

Dividend income

Dividends are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss on the date on which the Company's right
to receive payment is established.

i. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are
charged to Statement of profit and loss.

i- Employee benefits

(i). Short-term Employee benefits

Liabilities for wages and salaries, bonus and ex gratia including non-monetary benefits that are
expected to be settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees
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render the related service are classified as short-term employee benefits and are recognised as an
expense in the Statement of profit and loss as the related service is provided.

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensated absences. The employees can carry
forward a portion of the unutilised accumulating compensated absences. The Company records an
obligation for compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that
increases this entitlement. The obligation is determined by actuarial valuation performed by an
independent actuary at each balance sheet date using projected unit credit method.

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and
the obligation can be estimated reliably.

(ii) Post-Employment Benefits

Defined Contribution Plans:

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which a Company pays specified
contributions to a separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. The Company
makes contribution to provident fund in accordance with Employees Provident Fund and
Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and Employee State Insurance. Contribution paid or payable in
respect of defined contribution plan is recognised as an expense in the year in which services are
rendered by the employee.

Defined Benefit Plans:

The Company's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan, The liability is recognised in the
balance sheet in respect of gratuity is the present value of the defined benefit/obligation at the balance
sheet date less the fair value of plan assets, together with adjustments for unrecognised actuarial gain
losses and past service costs. The defined benefit/obligation are calculated at balance sheet date by
an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the
return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest),
are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income (OCI).

1. Leases
As a Lessee:

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.
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To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company
assesses whether:

i the contact involves the use of an identified asset

ii. the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period
of the lease and

iii. the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease lability with respect to all
lease agreements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the Company recognises
the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless
another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the
lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that
they will be exercised.

The leasé liability is initially measured at Amortised cost at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted by using the interest rate implicit in the lease
or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:
« fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives;

. variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate
at the commencement date;

« the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;
 the exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

« payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option
to terminate the lease.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the Statement of financial position. The lease
liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made. The Company remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment
to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:
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« the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option,
in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate.

« the lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under
a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using the initial discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due to a change in
a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used).

« a lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in
which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate.

The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line in the Statement of financial position. The
right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost which comprises of the initial measurement of the
corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before the commencement day and any initial
direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Whenever the Company incurs an obligation for costs to
dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on which it is located or restore the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, a provision is recognised and
measured. The costs are included in the related right-of-use asset, unless those costs are incurred to
produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset. If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use
asset reflects that the Company expects to exercise a purchase option, the related ri ght-of-use asset is
depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement
date of the lease.

m. Taxation

Income tax expense /income comprises current tax expense fincome and deferred tax expense
/income. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly
in equity or in other comprehensive income. In which case, the tax is also recognised directly in equity
or other comprehensive income, respectively.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or recoverable on the taxable profit or loss for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or recoverable in respect of previous years. It is measured
at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the taxation authorities using the applicable tax
rates and tax laws,
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. Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company has a legally enforceable right to
set off the recognised amounts; and

« intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purpose and the amount considered for tax purpose.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the benefit
of part or all of that deferred tax asset to be utilized such reductions are reversed when it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be
recovered.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences
when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting year.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:

i) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities;
and

ii) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on the same taxable entity.

n. Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions:

Foreign currency transactions are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange raie at the reporting date.



Rlabs Enterprise Services Limited (CIN UT2200TG2013PLC086168)

Notes to the restated financial statements

Exchange differences arising on the settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
Statement of profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

0. Dividend

The Company recognizes a liability for any dividend declared but not distributed at the end of the
reporting year, when the distribution is authorized and the distribution is no longer at the discretion *
of the Company on or before the end of the reporting year.

p- Earnings per share:

Basic carnings per share is computed by dividing profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The
Company did not have any potentially dilutive securities in any of the periods presented.

q. Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) for the period 1s adjusted
for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating
cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash
flows. Cash flows for the year are classified by operating, investing and financing activities.

r. Segment reporting

Operating segments are those components of the business whose operating results are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision making body in the Company for the purpose of
performance assessment and to make decisions for resource allocation.

The reporting of segment information in the Financial statements is the same as provided to the
management for the purpose of performance assessment and resource allocation to the segments.

Segment accounting policies are in line with accounting policies of the Company. Further, the
Company presently caters to only domestic market i.e., India and hence there is no revenue from
activities outside India, Revenue and expenses have been identified to segments on the basis of
their relationship to the operating activities of the segment. Revenue and expenses, which relate
to the Company as a whole and are not allocable to segments on a reasonable basis, have been
included under "Unallocated corporate expenses/income”.

s. Exceptional Items

Exceptional items refer to items of income or expense within the income statement from ordinary
activities which are material and non-recurring and are of such size, nature or incidence that their
separate disclosure is considered necessary to explain the performance of the Company and to
assist users of the financial statements.



Rlabs Enterprise Services Limited (CIN U72200TG2013PLC086168)

Notes to the restated financial statements

t. Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19 (COVID-
19):

The management has assessed the potential impact of the COVID-19 on the Financial Statements
of the Company. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the
global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval of
these financial statements has used internal and external sources of information. Based on the
assessment performed by the Company, and based on current estimates, the Company expects the
carrying amount of these assets will be recovered. The impact of the global health pandemic may
be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements and the
Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.
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See accompanyiug notes forming part of the Restated financial statements
(Amount in Rs Millions, unless otherwise stated)

—

MNon—current assets

4 Financial Assets

4.1 Investments As at
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 1-Apr-20
Unquoted
Investment in Accelsap Consulting Services Private Limited - - 0.59
Nil (31 Mar 22 Nil, 31 Mar 21 Nil, 1 Apr 20 597,760 equity Shares having Face Value of Rs.1/- sach) - - 0,59
4.2 Other financial assets As at
31-Mar-22  31-Mar-21 1-Apr-20
Security Deposits paid 3.86 3.59 3.34
3.86 3.59 334
5 Other non-current assets As at
31-Mar-22  31-Mar-21 L-Apr-20
Prepaid expenses - - 2028
Advance tax and Tax deducted at Source (Net) 5 .
- - 20.28
Current Assets
6 Financial Assets
6.1 Trade receivables (Unsecured) As at
31-Mar-22  31-Mar-21 t-Apr-20
(i1) Other trade receivables:
Unsecured, considered good 112.78 115.38 144.41
Unsecured, credit impaired 532 11.71 13.47
t18.10 127.09 157.88
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (5.32) (.70 (1347
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - - -
Trade receivables credit impaired - - -
112.78 115.38 144,41

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss on portfolio of its trade receivable, The provision matrix is based on its historically observed
default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward- looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default

rates are updated and changes in forward-looking estimates are analysed. The Company estimates the following matrix at the reporting date,

Outstanding for following period from due date of payment

<6 6 months  1-2 23 >3 Total
months -1 year years years years
31-Mar-22
Undisputed trade reccivables - considered good 112.78 - - - - 112,78
Undisputed trade receivables - credit impaired 1.31 316 0.86 - - 5.32
31-Mar-21
Undisputed trade receivables - considered good 109.26 14.42 341 - - 127.09
Undisputed trade receivables - credit impaired B - = - - -
Total 109.26 14.42 3.41 - - 127.09
1-Apr-20
Undisputed trade receivables - considered good 124.15 16.39 3.87 - - 144.4]
Undisputed trade receivables - credit impaired - - - - - -
Total 124,15 16.3¢9 3.87 - - 144.41
Aging
<6 6 months 1-2 2-3 >3
months - 1 year years years years
Default rate 1.00% 50.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
As at
Movement in expected credit loss allowance 31-Mar-22  31-Mar-21 [-Apr-20
Balance at the beginning of the year 11.71 13.47 -
Expected credit losses at the date of transition to [nd AS 13.47
Provision for expected credit losses written back - {1.76)
Balance at the end of the year 11.71 11.71 13.47




Rlabs Enterprise Services Limited (CIN U72200TG2013PLC086168)
See accompanying notes forming part of the Restated financial statements

(Amount in Rs Millions, unless otherwise stated)

6.2 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on hand
(c) Balances with banks :

(i) In current accounts

(ii} In deposit accounts

Of the above, balances that mest the definition of cash and cash
equivalents as per Ind AS 7 Cash Flow Statements is

6.3 Loans

Loans and advances to related parties
Employee advances

Loans and advances made to Directors/KMPs
Loans and advances made to Promoters

6.4 Other financial assets
(Unsecured and considered good, uniess stated otherwise)

Unbilled revenue
Receivable on sale of property plant and equipemt

7 Other Assets
{Unsecured and considered good, unless stated otherwise)

Advance to suppliers

As at
31-Mar-12  31-Mar-21 1-Apr-20
- - 0.14
102.27 5541 4102
- - 18.21
102,27 55.41 59.37
102,27 5541 59.37
As at
31-Mar-22  31-Mar-2] [-Apr-20
.00 61.28 27.19
0.15 0.10 0.69
1.15 61.38 27.88
- - 19.78
As at
31-Mar-22  31-Mar-21 1-Apr-20
81.49 89.27 84.08
30.70 1.90 -
112.19 91.17 84.08
As at
I-Mar-22  3t-Mar-21 1-Apr-20
2.84 14.55 4.51
2.84 14.55 4.51
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8 Equity Share Capital

(a) Authorised:

(1) Equity Share Capital
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each
Total

(b) Issued, Subscribed and Fully paid-up:
(i) Equity Share Capital

Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each*

Total

(1} Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting perfod:

Particulars

Equity shares of Rs. 10/-

each

At the beginning of the period/year

Add: Issued during the periodfyear
Qutstanding at the end of the period/year

(if)} Terms / rights attached to the Equity Shares:

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares Equity Shares: The Com,

As at
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 1-Apr-20
Number of Number of Number of Amount
Amount Amount
shares shares shares
1,50,00,000 150.00 1,50,00,060 150.00 1,50,00,000 150.00
1,50,00,000 150.00 1,50,00,000 150.00 1,50,00,000 150.00
83,52,531 83.53 83,52,531 83.53 83,52,531 83.53
83,52,531 83.53 83,52,531 83.53 83,52.531 83.53
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 1-Apr-20
Number of Amount Number of Amount Number of Amount
shares shares shares
83,52,531 83.53 83,52,531 83.53 83,52,531 83.53
83,52,531 83.53 83,52.531 83.53 83,52,531 83.53

pany has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share, Each

shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend, if any, proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the
ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend, In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible 1o receive the remaining
assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

(iif) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the share capleal:

Equity Shares 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 1-Apr-20
Number of % of Number of % of Number of % of
[Nameofthe SKareholder sharesheld  holding  sharesheld  holding  sharesheld  holding
[nnovsource Services Private Limited 55,41,900 66.35% - - - -
Firstmeridian Business 7.22,493.00 8.65% - - - -
Services Private Limited
Renuka Tadakamalla 13,40,584 16.05 63,89,694 76.50% 53,87,382 64.50%
Vadarevu Venkata Sesha - - - 0.00% 8,35,254 10.00%
Chalapati Rao
Malladi Vasu - - 7,43,371 §.90% 4,92,795 5.90%
Aitharaju Prameela - - 5,59,622 6.70% - 0.00%
(Iv} Shareholding of promoters 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 1-Apr-20
% change % change
. Number of % of Number of Number of % of
Equity shares of T 10/~ each shares held  holding during the shares held % of holding  during the shares held holding
period year
Innovsource Services Private Limited 5541900 66.35% 100,00% - - - - -
Firstmeridian Business Services Private 7,22,493 8.65% 100.00%
Limited B ) B B =
Venkatesan Vinodh 3,20,922 3.95% 100.00% - - - - -
Manish Mehta 1.00 0.00% - - - - -
Nilay Pratik 1.0% - 0.00% - - - - -
Satish Srinivasan 1.00 - 0.00%
Surya Sudheer Meduri 1.00 - 0.00% - - - - -
Shiv B Maliwal 1.00 - 0.00% - - - - -
Renuka Tadakamalla 13,40,584  16.05% -79.02%  63,89,694 76.50% 18.60% 53,87,382 64.50%
Vadarevy Venkata Sesha Chalapati Rao - B 0.00% - 0.06%  -100.00% 8,35,254 10.00%
Malladi Vasu 2,50,576 3.00% -660.29%  7,43,371 8.90% 50.85% 492,795 5.90%
Aitharaju Prameela 1,67,051 2.00% -10.15% 5,359,622 6.70% 100.00% - 0.00%
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9 Other Equity

Retained earnings/(deficit)

jal statements

Retained earnings/(defecit) comprise of the Company’s current and prior years’ undistributed €amings

aller taxes or accumulated losses.

Retained earnings/(deficit)
Opening balance
Profit/(loss) for the period/year

Add: Transition adjustment on account of Ind AS 116 {Refer Note 31)
Remeasurements of the defined benefit liabilities / (asset) net of tax

Closing balance
Non-current Liabilities
10.1 Long term borrowings

Term loan from banks

HDFC Bank Ltd [Refer note (i) below)
ICICI Bank Ltd [Refer note (ii) below]
Yes Bank Ltd [Refer note (jii) below]
Yes Bank Lid [Refer note (iv) below)
HDFC Bank Lid [Refer note (v) below]

Term loan from others

BMW Financial Services [Refer note (vi) below]
India Bulls Ltd [Refer note (vii) below]

Audi Financizl Services [Refer note (viii) below]

Terms and conditions and repayment detajls of long term borrowings

Particulars

(i) Borrowing of Rs.2,325,000 for purchase of Vehicle repayable over a period of 5 years at rate of 8,05% p.a secured

against Vehicle
(iiy Borrowing of Rs.1,19,00,000 and Rs.1 ,95,87,923 towards

purchase of building repayable over a period of 180

months and interest rate at 7.55% and 7.25% respectively secured against Building.
(i1} Borrowing of Rs.2,228,416 towards purchase of Vehicle repayable over a period of 60 months carrying an interest

rate of 3.30% p.a secured against Vehicle,

(iv) Borrowing of Rs.2,228.416 towards purchase of Vehicle repayable over a period of 60 months carrying an interest

rate of 9.30% p.a secured against Vehicle,

(v) Borrowing towards purchase of Vehicle repayzble over a period of 36 months carrying an interest rate of 7.99%

secured against Vehicle

{vi} Borrowing of Rs. 3,356,769 towards purchase of Vehicle repayable over a period of 36 months at the rate of 7.99%

p.2 ssecured against Vehicle,

(vii) Borrowing of 2,00,00,000 towards purchase of Building repayable over a period of 180 months carrying an interest

rate of 9.15% p.a secured against Bui Iding.
{viti) Borrowing of Rs. 3,200,000 towards purchase of vehicle r
of 8.60% p.a secured against Vehicle

10.2 Provisions

(a) Provision for employee bensfits
Provision for Gratuity [Refer note 25. .b]

epayable over a period of 84 months camying an interest

As at
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21  1-Apr-20
185.88 100.90 67.12
185.88 100.90 67.12
As at
J1-Mar-22 3-Mar-21  1-Apr-20
100,90 67.12 97.68
80.23 29.93 (28.64}
- - 3.7%
4.75 3.85 1.87
185.88 100.%0 67.12
As at
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21  1-Apr-20
= 1.04 [.43
- 28.79 -
- - 0.93
- 142 1.82
- - 0.83
- - 2.56
- - 1364
- - 2.33
- 31.25 20.54
- 1.04 1.43
- 28.79 -
- - 0.9
1.42 1.82
- - 0.83
- - 2.56
- - 10.64
- - 2.33
- 31.25 20.54
As 8t
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21  [-Apr-20
£.74 946 71.81
8.74 9.46 7.81
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Cu  nt Liabilities
11 Financial Liabilities

11.1 Short term borrewings As at
Particulars 31-Mar-22 M-Mar-2l  1-Apr-20
Secured
Current maturities of long tetm borrowings - 2,29 8.08
Working capital loan from banks (Refer note (a) below) - 104,11 106.63
Loan fron directors - Unsecured (Refer note (b} below) - - 0.54
Loan from others (Refer note (c) below) - 7.50 5.00
Total - 113.%0 120,25
Terms and conditions
(a} Working capital loan from banks carries an interest rate of 11.75%. Secured against trade receivables
{b) Loan from directors are unsecured, repayable on demand and are interest free
(c} Loan from others are unsecured, repayable on demand and are intererst free
11.2 Trade payables As at
Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21  1-Apr-20
Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro and simall enterprises - s
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises (Refer Note 21) 11.60 39.55 133.2]
11.60 39.55 133.21
Outstanding for following perfod from due date of payment
<6 6 months 1-2 23 =3
Total
months - 1 year years years years
31-Mar-22
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises - - = - - -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small 11.60 - - - - 11.60
enlerprises (Refer Note 21}
11.60 - - - - 11.60
31-Mar-21
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enlerprises - + - - - .
Total ouistanding dues of creditors other than micro and small 98.48 1.38 0.03 0.01 0.30 100.20
enterprises (Refer Note 21)
Total 98.48 1.38 0.03 0.01 0.30 100.20
1-Apr-20
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises - - - - - -
Total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small 130,92 1.83 0.04 0.01 0.40 133.21
enterprises (Refer Note 21) -
Total 130.92 1.83 0.04 0.01 0.40 133.21
1.3 Other financial liabilities As at
Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21  1-Apr-20
Consideration payable on business combination - 3150 -
Accrued compensation to employees 69.24 60.63 -
Others 2.12 - -
71.36 64.15 -
12 Provisions As at
Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21  1-Apr-20
(a} Provision for employee benefits
Provision for leave salary 3le 3.02 1.02
Provision for Gratuity [Refer note 22.1 .b] 0.35 - -
1.51 3.02 1,02
13 Other Liabilitles As at
Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21  1-Apr-20
Statutory remittances 45.84 49.06 77.21
45.84 49.06 77.21




Rlabs Enterprise Services Limited (CIN U72200TG2013PLC086168)
See accompanying notes forming part of the Restated financial statements
(Amount in Rs Millions, unless otherwise stated)

14 Revenue from operations
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Revennue from contract with customers
(a)  Sale of services
Income from staffing and recruitment services 1.158.53 1,017.74
1,158.53 1,017.74

(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from external customers
Income from staffing and recruitment services 1,158.53 1,017.74
1,158.53 L,017.74

Time of revenue recognition
-At a point in time 1,158.53 1,017.74
-Over time - B

(ii) Contract balances

The Company earns revenue from staffing and recruitment. The performance obli gation of the
Company is to provide staffing and recruitments, which are fulfilled at a point in time. There are no
material unsalisfied performance obligations or reconciling items between the amounts recognised as
revenue and contract price as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021,

Contract assets

Trade receivables (Refer note (i) below) 112.78 115.38
Unbilled revenue (Refer note (fi} below) §1.49 8§9.27
194,27 204.65

Contract liabilities z
(i) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on credit terms of upte 30 days,

{ii) Unbilled revenue pertains to transactions where performance obligation has been satisfied and
contractual invoices have not been raised.

15 Other income
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
(a) Interes! income from

-bank deposits . 0.43

-financial assets at amortised cost 0.27 025

-income tax refund 3.01 4.9]
(b) Liabilities no longer required written back 0.59 3.18
{c) Profit on sale of property plant and equipment 1.33 -

Total 5.20 .1




Rlabs Enterprise Services Limited (CIN U72206TG2013PLC086168)
See accompanying notes forming part of the Restated financial statements

(Amount in Rs Millions, unless otherwise stated)

16 Employee benefit expenses

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contributions to provident fund (Refer Note 22.1.a)

Gratuity expenses (Refer Note 22.1.b)

Staff welfare expenses

Contribution to provident and other funds
Total

18 Finance costs

Interest on borrowings

Interest on lease liabilities

Interest on delayed payment of taxes
Total

19  Other expenses

Rent including lease rentals

Power, fuel and water charges

Repairs and Maintenance - Qthers

Office Maintenance

WVehicte Mainienance

Insurance

Rates and Taxes

Communication expenses

Travelling and Conveyance

Business promotion expenses

Professional / Consultancy / Technical fees
Payments to Auditors (Refer note 1 below)
Bad debts written off (Refer note 2 below)

Corporate Social Responsibility

Loss on sale of property plant and equipment

Printing and stationery
Bank charges

Provision for allowance for doubtful trade and other receivables

Total

Note I - Payments to auditors:
Particulars

Payments to auditors comprises (net of service tax input credit, where

applicable);

Statutory audit fees

For tax audit and certification fees
Total

Note 2 - Bad debts written off
Particulars
Bad debts written off

Bad debts written off from provision of doubtful debts

Tota)

Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
804,79 630.45
22.81 17.52
6.87 7.02
1.60 234
0.50 0.87
836.57 658.20
Year ¢ended Year ended
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
10.92 15.46
1.48 2.20
6.64 9.00
19.04 26.66
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
4.80 4.37
1.36 1.84
0.37 1.02
312 329
048 0.50
4.17 3.08
5.85 3.46
3.03 3.49
4,75 7.64
0.72 0.95
150.53 22091
0.49 0.40
1.75 20.25
1.15 1.74
- 1.27
0.08 0.11
0.69 0.52
(6.39) (1.76}
176.86 273.05
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
0.40 0.30
- 0.10
0.40 0.40
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-22 J1-Mar-21
1.75 20.25
1.75 20.25




Rlabs Enterprise Services Limited (CIN U72200T62013PLC086168)
See accompanying notes forming part of the Restated financlal statements
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Additional information to the financial statements

Note Particulars

20
()

(i)

21

31-Mar-22  31-Mar-21 I-Apr-20

Contingent labilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)
Contingent liabilities:
Income 1ax matiers under appeal 10.72 10.72 -

Commitments: - - -

The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and
disclosed as contingent liability where applicable, in its financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to
have a materially adverse effect on its financia! position. The Company does nol expeet any reimbursement in respect of the above contingent
liabilities.

Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Miero, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Particulars 31-Mar-22 I1-Mar-21 I-Apr-20
(i} Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as al the end of the accounting yvear - -

(i) Inzerest due thereon remaining unpaid Lo any supplier as at the end of the accounting year - - -

(iii) The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier - - -
beyond the appointed day

(iv)The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which - -

have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest

specified under the MSMED Act

(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid al the end of the accounling year - - -

(vi) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such - -
date when the interest dues as above are actually paid 1o the small enterprise, for the purpose
of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23

Dues 1o micro and small enterprises have been determined 1o the extent such parlies have been identified on the basis of information collecied by
the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors,



Rlabs Enterprise Services Limited (CIN U72200TG2013PLCO86168)

See accompanying notes forming part of the Restated financial statements
(Amount in Rs Millions, unless otherwise stated)

MNote Particulars

22 Employee benefit plans

22.1.a  Defined contribution plans - provident fund

The Company makes Provident Fund scheme contributions to defined contributi

on plans and Employee Stale insurance scheme for qualifying employees. Under the

Schemes, the Company is required 1o contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs 1o fund the benefits. The Company recognised the following contributions

in the Statement of profit and loss.

Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21  l-Apr-20
Provident fund 22,81 17.52 18.93
Employee state insurance 0.43 0.%0 0.83
221 Defined benefit plan - gratuity
In accordance with applicable Indian laws, the Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan {Gratuity plan). The Gratuity plan
provides a lump sum payment 10 vested employees, al retirement or lermination of employmenl, an amount based on the respective employee’s last
drawn cligible salary and the years of employment with the Company. The Cempany provides the gratuity benefit through valuation carried out by
actuary included as part of *Gratuity expenses’ in Nole 16 Employee benefit expense. Under this plan, the setlement obligation remains with the
Company. This is an unfunded plan.
Description of Risk Exposures
Valuations are performed on certain basic sel of pre-determined assumptions and other regulatory framewerk which may vary over time. Thus, the
Company is exposed to various risks in providing the above gratuity benefil which are as follows:
A Interest Rate Risk: The plan exposes the Company 1o the risk of Fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an increase in the uliimate cost
of providing the above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the liability {as shown in financial stalemenis).
B Investment Risk: The probability or likelihood of accurrence of losses ralative 1o the expecied retum on any particular investmeni.
C Salary Escalation Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated wiih the assumption of salary increase rate of plan panticipants in
future. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used 10 determine the present value of
obligation will have 2 bearing on the plan’s liabilty.
D Demographic Risk: The Company has used certain mortality and atirition assumptions in valuation of the liabjlity. The Company is exposed to the risk
of actual experience tuming out to be worse compared 1o the assumption,
E Liquidity Risk: This is the risk that the Company is not able 10 meet the short-term grawity payouts. This may arise due to non-availabilty of enough
cash/cashequivalent to meet the liabilities or holding of illiquid assets not being sold in time.
F The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit
credit method.
The following table sets out the funded status of the gratuity scheme:
Year ended Year ended
Partlculars 3i-Mar-22 31-Mar-21  01-Apr-20
Components of emplover expense
Current service cost 6.24 6.50 9.96
Past service cost - - -
Interest cost 0.63 0.52 0.3s
Nel transfer of asset/(liability}
Expected return on plan assets - 2 -
Recognised in stalement of profit and loss 6.87 7.02 10.31
Re-measurement - actuarial {gain)/loss recognised in OCI {6.25) {5.15) {2.50)
Total expense recognised in the Statement of fotal coimprehensive income 0.52 1.87 7.81
ther Comprehensive Income ( OCI
Actuarial {gain}loss due to DBC experience (6.05) (5.11) (2.91)
Actuarial (gain¥loss due 10 DBO assumption changes (0.30) (0.04) 0.41
Acruarial (gain)loss arising during period {6.35) {5.15) {2.5m
Actual rerurn on plan assets {greater)less interest on plan assers = = E
Aciuarial (gains)/ losses recognized in OC] (6.35) (5.15) {2.50)



Riabs Enterprise Services Limited (CIN U72200TG2013PLCOB6168)
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Note

Particulars

Defined Benefit Cost

Service cost

Net interest on pe1 defined benefit liability / (asset)
Actuarial (gains) losses recognized in OCI
Defined Benefit Cost

Change in defined benefit oblipation (DBOY during th ear
Present value of DBO at beginning of the year

Current service cost

Past service cost

Interest cost

Actuarial (gains) / logses

Liabilities assumed/(settled)*

Benefits paid

Present value of DBO at the end of the year

* On account of business combination or inter group mansfer
Actual contribution and benefit pavments for

Year

Actual benefit payments

Acwal contributions

Change in fair value of assels during the vear

Plan assets at beginning of the year
Expecied return on plan assets
Actual company contributions
Employer direct benefits payment
Actuarial gain/ (loss)

Benefits paid

Plen asseis at the end of the ysar
Actual retum on plan assets

Current and Non Curreat Liability portion
Particulars

Current Liability

Non Current Asset/ (Liability)

Net Asset/(Liability)

Net agset / (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligation

Fair value of plan asse1s

Funded status [Surplus / {Deficit))

Net asset / (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet

Actuarial assumptions

Discount rate

Alttrition rate
18-30 years
340 years
4] & +

Salary escalation

31-Mar-22
6.24
063
(6.35)
0,52

946
6.24

0,63
(6.35)

0.89)
9.09

0.89
0.8%

0.89

{0.89)

(0.35)
(8.74)
3.09

2.09
(9.09)
(9.09)
7.12%

12.00%
8.00%

1.00%
4.00%

31-Mar-21
6.50
0.5z
(5.15)
1.87

7.81
6.50

0.52
(5.15)

(0.22)
946

.22
0.22

(0.09)
{2.46)
(9.55)

946
{9.46)
(9.46)
6.71%

10.00%
5.00%

LO0%
4.00%

01-Apr-20
9.96
035
{2.50)
7.81

(7.81)
(7.81)

(7.81)
(7.81)

6.65%

12.00%
8.00%
1.00%
4.00%
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Note Particulars

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Goveniment of India securities as al the Balance Sheel date for the estimated term of the

abligations,

Sensitivity Analysis

Reasonably passible changes at the reporting date 10 one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constani, would have

affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

Gratuity Plan 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Estimate value of obligation if discount rate is taken [% higher 8.44 8.92
Estimated value of obligation if discount eate is taken 1% lower 0.85 10.09
Estimate value of obligation if salary growth rate is iaken 1% higher .87 10.10
Estimale value of obligation: if salary growth rate is taken 1% lower 842 8.90
Estimate value of obligation if atirition rate is 1aken )% lower 10,81 11.78
Estimate value of obligation if atirition rate is taken [% lower 6.85 6.45

01-Apr-20
7.39
B9
8.30
8.30
9.78
515

These sensitivities have been calculated to show the movement in defined benefit obligation in isolation and assuming there are no other changes in
market conditions at the accounting date. There have been no changes from the previous periods in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the

sensitivity analysis,

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:

Maturity profile, if it ensues Ji-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
| year - -
2-5 years 0.30 :
6-10 years 0.27

More than |0 years 13.11 314

#1-Apr-20

0.26

314
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Note
13 The CODM of the Company has identified the Business segment of the company primarily relates to the staffing and recruitment. Geographical revenues are allocated
based on the Jocation of the cust Geographical seg of the Company are United S1ates of America,
(1S fary G hic § Inf g
Geagraphic Segment Revenues Segment assels Capital expenditure
Uniled S1ates of America
31-Mar-22 41,32 13.30
31-Mar-21 12.60 30.82
1-Apr-20 . =
India
31-Mar-22 L1721 411.82 0.35
J1-Mar-21 1,005.14 489,13 29,00
1-Apr-20 E 544,96 a
Total
31-Mar-22 1,158.53 425.12 - 0,35
M-Mar-21 1,017.74 519,95 - 29.03
1-Apr-20 - 544.96 - -

24 Related party transactlons

A. Details of related parties:

Name of related partles Description of relationship

FirstMeridian Business Services Limited Ultimate Holding Company (With effect from 2 Feb 22}
Innovsource Services Private Limited Holding Company {With effect from 2 Feb 22)
Accelgap Consulting Services Private Limited Entity in which KMP has significant influcnee

Trikuta Labs Limited Entity in which KMP has significant influence
Datafonnix Technologics Entity in which KMP has significant influence

Aftharaju Srikanth Key management personnel

Venkatesan Vinodh Key management personnel

Renuka Tadakamalla Key managerent personnel

Malladi Vasu Key management personnel

B.  Details of transactions during the year and balance outstanding #s st the balance sheet date:

Related parties Nature of transactions: 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Dalaformix Technologies Incorne from staffing and recruitment services - 29,43
FirstMeridian Business Services Limited Salarics and wages - Employce stock option amonisation a7 -
Aitharaju Srikanth Loans givendrepaid) - 20,96
Trikuta Labs Limited Loans 1aken - 5.64
Trikuta Labs Limited Loans repaid - (18,94)
Accelsap Consulting Services Private Limited Loans given . 135
Accelsap Consulting Services Private Limited Loans recoverad - (6.25)
Dataformix Technologies Loans givenfrepaid) - .33
Venkatesan Vinedh Rermuneration o.M 224|
Bharti Qupta Remuneration
Aitharaju Srikanth Professional Scrvices - 1.96
Venkatesan Vinodh Professional Services . .96
Aitharaju Srikanth Sak of Builing 301
Outstanidng balances as at
Partleulars Related Party 31-Mar-22 3-Mar-21 I-Apr-20
(i) Loans and advances given Trikula Labs Limited - - 13.30
Accelsap Consulting Services Privaie Limited - - 4.90
Diataformix Technologics 1.00 31.33 -
Altharaju Srikanth - 2995 £.00
(i) Loans and advances taken Dataformix Technologies - - 0.54
(iii) Trade receivables Dataformix Technologies 33.18 30.14 2.55
(iv) Trade payables FirstMeridian Business Services Limited 0.17 -

Note: The above information has been determined fo the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information provided by the Company, which has been
relied upon by the auditors.
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Note Particolars

25

Earnings per equity share

Brofit \ (Loss) anributable to equity sharchold
Weighted average number of equity shares ( Nos.)
Par value per equity share (Rs.)

Earnings/{loss) per share - Basic & Diluted (Re.)

Mote Partleulars

b3

D Reconciliation of the income tax Provision te the amount

Income Tox recognised:

A Current Tax:

Statement of profit and loss
Other comprehensive income

Deferred Tax:
Statement of profit and loss
Other comprehensive income

Total
Current tax
Deferred tax

B Movment in deferred tax assets

Opening balance

Recognised in statement of profit and loss
Arising on account of Ind AS 116
Ariging out of property plant and equipment and [ntangibles
Arising on account of employee benehits
Arising on account of loss allowance on trade receivables
Others '

Recognised In other comprehensive fncome
Remeasurements of the defined benefit libilities

Closing balance

C Deferved tax assels

Arising on accourt of adoption of Ind AS 116

Arising out of property plant and cquipment and Intangibles
Arising on accoun of employee benefits

Arising on account of loss allowance on trade receivables
Others

summarized below:

Profiv(loss) before tax as per statement of profit and loss
Statutory income tax rate
Income tax on accounting profit at statitory income tax rate

Income tax of earlier years
Tax effect on non-deductible oxpenscs
Others

Tax eredil reported in the restated consolidated statement of profit and logs

Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
80.23 29.03
81,52.531 83,52,531
10.00 10.00
9.41 158
Year ended Year ended
I-Mar-22 3i-Mar-21
29.06 20.79
4.41 (0.43}
1.60 1.3
2096 20.79
6.01 087
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
&.50 7.37
(0.27) 0.08
(5.84) {017
{0.06} 096
(1.61) (C.44)
ol? -
1.60 (1.30}
0.4% 6.50
—
As 8t
31-Mar-221 3t-Mar-21 1-Apr-20
078 1.05 0.97
(5.09) 0.75 .92
129 1.75 2.09
1.34 2,95 139
017 - -
0.4% 6.50 1.37

computed by applying the statutory income tax rate tp the income before income taxes is

Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
114.60 50.29
25.17% 25.17%

2884 12.66

553 170

34.37 20.36
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%

On 30 Mirch 2019, the Minisiry of Corporate Affairs had notified Ind AS 116, Leascs, replacing the existing leases standard, Ind AS 17, Leascs, and related
Interpretations. The new lease standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both pantics to a contraet i.c.,
the lessee and the lessor. Ind AS 116 introduces o single lessce accounting model and requires a lessee 1o recognize asseis and liabilitics for all leases with a term of
mare than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. Currently, operating lease expenses are charged to the of comprehensive i The
Standard also contains enhanced discl qui for | Ind AS 116 substantially carrics forward the lessor accounting requirements in Ind AS 17.

The standard permils o possible methods of transition:
Full retrospective : Retrospectively to each prior period prescoted applying Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

Modified poctive ; R pectively, with the lative effeet of initially applying the Standard recognized at the date of initinl application.
The Company has d into leasing arrang in respeet of office premise. The leasing urring which are g lly llable, have loase periods ranging
between 11 and 60 months. They are generally renewable by mutual consent on mutually agrecable terms. The operating leases are cancelluble by kssor/lessec with

notice period up to three months.

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected by the Company on the initial application:
Applied the exemption not 10 recognize right-of-usc assets and liabilities for leases with Jess than 12 months of lease term on the date of initial application,

Excluded the initial direet costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the dute of initial application,

The Company has adopted the amendments 1o Ind AS 116 for the first time in the current year. The amendments provide practical reliel to lessees in accounting for rent
coneessions occurring as a direct consequence of COVID-19, by introducing a practical expedient to Ind AS 116. The practical expedient permits a lessee to elect not
to assess whether a COVID-19-related rent concession is a lease modification. A lessec that makes this clection shall account for any change in lease paymenis
resulting from the COVID- | 9-related rent concession the same way it would account for the chunge applying Ind AS 116if the change were not g lease modification,

The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of COVID-19 and only if all of the following conditions are met:

a. The change in leasc payments results in revised consideration for the lzase that is substantially the same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change;

b. Any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021 {a rent concession mects Lhis condition if it resulls in reduced lease
paymenis

¢. There is no substantive change 1o other terms and conditions of the (case.

The Company has discounted lease paymenis using the applicable incremental borrowing raic as on the icasc date, for measuring the lease liability,

Year ended Year ended
Movement in right-of-use assets and lease liabilities during the year: 31-Maor-22 31-Mar-21
Right-ol-use assets
Gross block
As at the date of Transition i.e 1 Apr 20 - -
Opening balance : 41.50 41.50
Additions - ]
Delerions - -
Closing baiance 41,50 41.50
Accumulated depreciation
As at the date of Transition i.e | Apr 20 - -
Opening balance 19.88 10,20
Drepreciation for the year 9.68 5.68
29.56 19.68
Net block 11.94 21.62
Year ended Year ended
Lease Linbillties 31-Mar-22 31-ATar-2f
As at the date of Transition i.e { Apr 20
Opening balance 25.13 3427
Additions = -
Inlerest 1.48 210
Rent concessions on lease rentals on account of COVID - -
Leasc payments (11.96) {1L34)
Closing balance 14.65 25.13
—
Current 10.14 10.47
Nen-current 4.52 14.66
As at
Maturlty analysis of OLL 31-Mor-22 31-Mar-21 1-Apr-20
I year 12.56 11.96 11.34
1 to 5 years 2,80 15.36 2733
Meore than 5 years - - -
Year ended Yeor ended
I-Mar-22 31-pMar-21

Lease rent expense on short-lerm and low value lease debited to Statement of Profil and Loss 4.30 4.37
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Rlabs Enterprise Services Limited (CIN U72200TGI0I3PLCOS6169)
See accompanying notes forming part of the Restared finunclal statcments
(Amount in Rs Millions, unless otherwise stated)

at

Financinl risk management
The Company’s principal financial linbilities, comprise loans and borrowings, mrade and other payables, The main purpose of these 13 il liabilities is o finance the pany 's operations and to p
10 SuUpport its operal The Company’s p pal i | assets include loans, wrade and other receivables, and cash and shor-term depostis that derive direetly (rom ils operalions.

i

The Company's activitics expose it 16 o variety of financial risks; credit risk, liquidity risk. foreign currency risk and interest rate risk, The Company's primary focus s to foresee the unprediciability of
financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effecis on its financial performance. The primary market risk 10 the company is foreign cxchange risk. The Company uscs lorcign currency borowings

1o mitigate foreign exchange related risk exp

The Board of Di iews and agrees policies for ging each of these risks, which are summarised below:

Credin risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss 1o the Gy pany if a or ¢ party 1o i fi | instrument fails to meet iis contractual obligntions, and ariscs principally from the Company s receivables
from ¢ s and i ities. Credit risk arises from cash held with banks and financial institutions. as well as eredit exposure to clients, including i ivable. The maximum

&
exposure 1o eredit risk is equal 10 the carrying value of the financial assets, The objective of managing counterparty credit risk is 10 prevent losses in financial asseis. The Company asscsses the eredin quality

of the partics, taking into their fi position, past experience and other factors,
Trade and other receivables
The Company's exposure 1o credit tisk is influcneed mainly by the individual char. istics of cach The d phics of the ¢ including the default risk of the industry and country in which

the customer operates, also has an influence on credit risk asscssment,

The following table gives dewails in respect of P ge of o5 d from top and Lop 5

Year ended Year ended
Particulars Jt-Mar-22 It-Mar-21
Revenue from top customer 22218 32880
Revenue From top 5 customers 643,95 633,59

One customer accounted for more than 25% of the revenue for the period ended Mareh 31, 2022 and one of the customers accoumied for more than 21.47% of the receivables as atl March 31, 2022, One
Guslorer accounted far more than 32.44% of the revenue for the year March 31, 202) end one of the customers accounted for more than 24.12% of the receivables as at March 31 2021,

Investments
The Company Jimils its exposure to credit sk by generally imvesting in liquid securities and oniy with counterparties that have a good credit raling. The company docs not expect any losses from non-
performance by these counter-parties, and docs not have any significant concentration of exposures to specific industry seclors.

Liguidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will nol be able 1o mect ils fi ial obligations a5 they b due. The Company manages ils liquidity risk thraugh credit limits with banks.

The Company's corporate trezsury departrncni is responsible For liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition, processes and policies related to such rsks are overseen by senior
management,

The working capita) position of the Company is given below: As at
Particulars 31-Mar-22 Jt-Mar-21 01-Apr-20
Cash and cash equivalents 102,27 5541 3937
Tatal 10227 5541 5937
The tabic below provides details garding the contr, ! rmaturitics of significant hinancial liabilitics as at March 31, 2022, March 31, 202) and April ). 2020
Parteulars As at Less than | year 1-2 years 2 years and above
Leng term borrowings 31-Mar-22 - . -
M-Mar-21 229 2.65 238.60
0l-Apr-20 i 3.08 1.33 19.2]
Shon-term borrowings 3-Mar-22 -
31-Mar-21 113.9¢ . -
01-Apr-20 120.25 - ) -
Trade payables 3-Mar-22 11.60
31-Mar-2] 39,55 - -
01-Apr-20 133.21 - .
Other financial liabilivies 3-Mac-22 57.70 2,80

31-Mar-21 73,92 - 15.36
0l-Apr-20 - g =
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Faorcign Currency risk

The Company's exchange risk arises from its foreign of i forcign y and exp {primarily in U.S. dollars) and farcign currency borrowings (primarily in U.S, dollars), A significam
portion of the Company's revenucs arc in these fareign currencics, while a significant portion of its costs are in Indian rupees. As a result, if the value of \he Indian rupee sppreciates relative 1o these foreign
currencies, the Company 's revenues measured in rupees may decrease. The exchange rate b the Indian rupee and these foreign currencics has changed substantially. in recent periods and may continue to

Muctuate substantially in the future. The Company's management meets on a periodic basis to formulate the strategy for foreign currency risk management.

Ce quently, the Company believes that the bomowings in forcign currency and its asscls in forcign currency shall mitigate the foreign currency risk mutually to some extent,
The following able Toreign 'y tisk from non-derivative financial instruments as of
Particulars As at uss Total
Liabilitics
Trade receivahles 31-Mar-22 1313 13.13
31-Mar-21 0,82 30.82
O1-Apr-20 - -
Trade payables 31-Mar-22 (0.65) (0.65)
3 -Mar-21 {119y (110
1-Apr-20 g 5
Net assets/ilisbilitics) 31-Mar-22 13,78 13.78
JE-Mar-21 IR 3192
1-Apr-20 - -

Forcign currency sensitivicy analysis
The Company is mainly exposed to the currency USD on of outstanding trade reccivables and wade payables in USD.

The following mble details the Company's sensitivity to a 5% inercase and decrease in INR against the USD. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when reponting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management's of the bly possible chanpe in forcign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated manctary items
and adjusts their wanslation at the period end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A negative number below indicates an deerease in profit or cquity where the INR steengthens 5% againgt the relevant

eurrency. For a 5% weakening of the INR against the relevant curreney, there would be a comparable impact on the profit or equity, and the balances below would be positive.

Year ended Year cnded
Particulars 31-Mar-22 3M-Mar-21
Impacy on profit or {loss) for the year {0.69} (.60}

For a 5% weakening of the INR against the relevar currcncy, there would be cquivalent amount of impact on the profit as meationed in the above wable,

Interest rate risk
Imerest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or futere cash flows of a financial insmument will Nuctuate because of changes in marker interest raies. The Company's cxposure to the risk of changes in marke
imerest rates relates primanily 1o the C pany s debt obligations with 1 g interest rates and Investments

Interest rate sensitivity analysis
IT imerest rates had been 19% higher and all other vaniables were hold canstant, the company's profit for the year ended would have impacted in the following manner:

Year ended Year coded
Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21

Impact on profit or (loss) for the year 1.46 206
If interest rates were 1% lower, the company’s profit would have increased oc loss would have decreased by the cquivalent smount as shown in the above Lable.

Capital management

The Company ‘s policy is 10 maintain a strong capital base so as (o maintain investor, credilor and market confidence and 10 sustain future developmeni of the busi The Comp itors the return on
capitzl The Company’s objective when ging copilal is 1o maintain an optimal 50 35 10 harehalder value.

The capital structure is as follows: As at

Particulars Ji-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 01-Apr-20
Tota) equity attributable to the equity sharc holders of the company 269.41 1B4.43 150,65
Currenl borrowings 10,14 124.37 12025
Mon-curment bormowings 4.52 45.91 20.54
Tmal borrowings 14.66 170,28 140,79

Total capltal (horrowings and oquity) 184.07 354.71 9144
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/3__3_ Traosition ta Ind AS

The Company’s fi ial for the year ended March 31, 2021 are prepared in aceordance with Ind AS notified under the © panies (Indian A ing Stndards) Rules, 2015, The adoption of Ind
AS was carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101, using April 1, 2020 as the transition date. Ind AS 101 requires that all Ind AS i and fnterp ians that are cffective for the imerim Ind AS financial
staternents for the year ended March 31, 2021 be applied i y ond T ly for all fiscal years presented. All applicable Ind AS have been pplicd i ly nnd n pectively wherever

required. The resulting difference between the camrying amounts of the assets and liabilitics in the financial statements under both Ind AS and Indian GAAP as at the wransition date have been recopnized
dircetly in equity ot the transition date,

In preparing these financial statements, the Company has availed itse)f of certain exemptions and exceptions in accordance with (nd AS 101 a5 cxplained below:
(a) Exceptions from full retr pective 1

Esti p Upon an of the esti made under Indian GAAP, the Company has concluded that there was no necessity 1o revise such estimates under Ind AS, excepl where estimales
were required by Ind AS and not required by Indian GAAP.

{b) Exemptions from retrospeetive application:
The Company has elected to restate the carrying value of the plant and equipment io accordance with Ind AS, as of April 01, 2020 {mansition date} as its deemed cost as of the lansition dare.

{r} Reconcillations:
The following reconciliations provide a Quantification of the effect of significant differences acising from the transition from Indian GAAP 10 Ind AS in sccordance with Ind AS 1013

-equity as at April 1, 2020
-cquily as al March 31, 2021;
~total comprehiensive income for the year cnded  March 31, 2021;

- explanation of i) adj to cash flow smtements,
As at

(A) Equity Reconclllation Explanation Note 31-Mar-21 0-Apr-20

Equity as per previous GAAP 20179 218.54
(a} Impact on aceount of ind AS 19 ' (i) (6.71) (8.30)
(b) Inpact on account of Ind AS 116 (] 4,00 {1.7%)
(€} Impact on account of measuring interest free rental deposit at amortised cost (i} (0.05) 0.04)
(d) Impact on account of accounting prior period as ot 31 March 2020 {iv) - (48.81)
(¢} Impact on account of expeeted credit losses on trade receivables 64 {11.71) {1347
(N A ing of busi binotion (vi) {2,52) -
(g) Deferred tax impact on account of the abave a5 applicable 572 6.52

Equity as per Ind AS 184.43 150.65

(B) Total comprehensive income reconciliation Year coded

31-Mar-21

Net incomes(toss) under previous GAAP (14.75)
(a) Impact on account of Ind AS 19 (1] 1.59
(b} Inpect on account of Ind AS 116 (iiy (0.30)
() Impact on account of measuring interest free rental deposit at smortised cost (i) {0.01)
(d} Impact on secount of accounting prior period as at 31 March 2020 (iv) 48.81
(¢} Remeasurement of defined benefit abligations {f (3.85)
(f} Impact on account ol expected credit losses on trade receivables ¥ 1.76
(g) Accounting of busi biniati {vi) (2.52)
(h} Deferred tax impact on account of the above as applicable {D.80)

Profit for the year under ind AS 29.93

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations 3.85

Total comprehensive income under Tnd AS 3378

{C) There were no significant reconciliation items between cash flows prepared under Indian GAAP and those preparcd under Ind AS.

Explanation nodes far Ind AS transition:
(i} Under the previous GAAP, actuarial gains or losses were recopnised in the statement of profit and loss. Under Ind AS. the actuarial gains or losses from pant of remeasurement of the not defined benefiy
liability  asset is recognised in other prehensive income. Change in the defined bengfit obligation on account of Ind AS is recognised in the siatement of profil and loss.

In addition ta the above there were also some changes in ihe defined benefi plan liability on adoption of Ind AS by thw Company which has been adjusted in the opening retained ings as at 31 Mar 21 and
of total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 Mar 22




